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         October 20, 2009 
 
CHAIRS OF SENATE COMMITTEES 
CHAIRS OF SENATE DIVISIONS 
 
Dear Division and Committee Chairs: 
 
I am writing to transmit for your review the final report of the joint Senate-Administration Task 
Force on the Education Abroad Program, which was completed last summer. The report is 
accompanied by a two-page memo that identifies some issues related to implementation of the new 
EAP fee structure. Although the Senate office received the task force report in July, the Senate 
leadership decided that it would be more appropriate and practical for the report to be reviewed in 
2009-10 than in the final summer months of 2008-09. Accordingly, I am transmitting the report now 
with the request that you complete your review by January 15. Please note that earlier dates are 
suggested in some of the enclosed documents but do not apply to this review. 
 
The current fiscal emergency and the need to set fees before students make decisions about enrolling 
in EAP for the 2010-11 academic year have necessarily put near-term fiscal decisions on a fast track 
that could not wait for full Senate review. As a result, EAP is in the process of transitioning from 
central funding to a student fee-based budget model. However, many longer term decisions remain, 
as illustrated by the enclosed brief memo on issues related to fee implementation. In addition, the 
recommended formation of an oversight board appointed by the Provost is already underway. The 
systemwide Senate committees on international education, planning and budget, and educational 
policy have been consulted as these administrative decisions have been made.  
 
In the meanwhile, one of the task force’s most significant conclusions was its determination that 
EAP is an academic rather than a service program, with the result that EAP’s programmatic 
decisions require review and approval by the appropriate Senate bodies. In addition, formal Senate 
review is essential to determine what kind of information about courses taken abroad is necessary for 
major credit, how to ensure adequate faculty oversight of programs with fewer study abroad centers, 
and whether any committees other than UCIE should be engaged in decisions about opening and 
closing programs. Comment on both the merit of the recommendations and how they should be 
implemented will feed directly into the decisions to be made by the newly forming EAP governing 
board and will be critical in shaping the future of EAP. In particular, concrete information on how 
the existing and proposed changes in EAP will affect student access to and participation in study 
abroad opportunities at individual campuses is essential. 
 



Although comment on any aspect of the report is valuable, you may wish to focus your attention on 
the recommendations for which implementation will be on a longer timeline: 
 

 Relocation of UOEAP to a campus (recommendation 3); 
 Adoption of cost effective means of managing program and study center administration 

(recommendation 5); 
 Elimination of UOEAP’s role in providing information about EAP courses (recommendation 

5); 
 UCIE advice on decisions to open and close study centers (recommendation 6); 
 A line item in UOEAP’s budget for faculty involvement in overseeing program quality 

(recommendation 7); 
 Clarification of the roles of campus faculty and administrative directors (recommendation 8); 
 Monitoring and resolving issues related to and arising from different near term choices in 

implementation of the EAP fee. 
 
Some questions arising from these recommendations most likely implicate data and insights that will 
come from the divisions: these include whether some apparent cost savings actually represent cost 
shifting from one location to another with what likely effects, the extent to which academic units rely 
on UOEAP for academic support services, and what campus services will need to be supported from 
EAP fees under the new funding model, as well as questions about the appropriate roles of campus 
faculty and administrative directors and under what conditions a division would urge its campus to 
house UOEAP. Other questions may be easier for committees to address, such as the nature and extent 
of oversight and management needed to ensure program quality and the kind of information and 
structures needed for meaningful Senate involvement in decisions to establish and close programs.  
 
Although all Senate committees are invited to review and comment on this report, any committee may 
decline to do so. Please let me know if you need additional information. In the meanwhile, thank you 
for your assistance.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
Martha Kendall Winnacker, J.D. 
Executive Director, Academic Senate 
 
Cc: Council Chair Henry C. Powell 
 Council Vice Chair Daniel L. Simmons 
 Associate Director Todd Giedt 
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The EAP Fee Implementation Issues for Consideration 
 
September 22, 2009 
 
1. Background 
In FY 2010/11, the University of California’s Education Abroad Program (EAP) will 
transition to a funding model based largely on fees paid by students participating in EAP 
programs (a so-called EAP fee). Students participating in an EAP program and paying an 
EAP fee will not pay the Education or Registration Fees that would otherwise apply for 
the duration of their EAP program. 
 
A joint administrative-Senate task force assembled in spring 2009 to review EAP’s 
strategic directions evaluated and agreed to the fee-based approach as part of its work. 
The task force also recommended that  
 

 the EAP fee should have a return-to-aid component and that 
 the EAP fee should be set annually by the Provost upon the recommendation from 

the Governing Committee as part of a transparent and consultative budget 
appropriations process managed according to a standard calendar.  

 
The task force finally sought clarification on certain implementation issues for example 
pertaining to the setting and distribution of the EAP fee and asked that this be presented 
as a set of concrete recommendation to the Governing Board when it convened initially in 
fall 2009.  
 
This document outlines those implementation issues and seeks input as to how best to 
address them. It is framed as a proposal with issues represented in italic. 
 
The document is being circulated to the Academic Senate leadership, the Executive Vice 
Chancellors, and Vice Chancellors for Planning and Budget in order to gather input from 
appropriate sources.  
 
Feedback is requested no later than Monday October 12, 2009 All feedback received 
will be summarized and incorporated into an options paper that will be taken to the first 
meeting of the EAP Governing Committee for its consideration in mid October 2009.  
 
It is intended that a decision about how the EAP Fee will be implemented will taken by 
the Provost in October 2009 upon advice from the Governing Committee.  
 
 
2. EAP Fee implementation issues 

 
1. The EAP fee will be set annually by the Provost upon advice from the Governing 

Committee (as recommended by the Task Force), with the Board of Regents 
being informed as part of the normal reporting on budget and fee items. 

 



2. EAP will collect fee income from participating EAP students. 
 

3. EAP fee income will be taxed by the Office of the President at a rate of 
approximately 2% comparable to the rate that applies to Education and 
Registration Fee revenues generally. 

 
4. The EAP fee will have a return to aid component (as recommended by the Task 

Force) 
 

5. EAP may also assign the following miscellaneous fees to be approved annually by 
the Provost upon advice from the Governing Committee 

 
a. a supplemental program fee as needed, reflecting the different costs 

involved in study abroad programs in different locations;  
 

b. a non-refundable application fee 
 
Issues: 
a) At what level will return to aid on the EAP Fee be set? At the same level that 

applies to the Ed and Reg Fees (28%)? 
b) How will the level of return to aid be set? In the same manner as applies to return 

to aid generally? 
c) If the EAP Fee exceeds the Ed and Reg Fees, will return to aid be calculated 

based on the lower value of the Ed and Reg Fees? 
d) How will return to aid paid on all or any portion of the EAP Fee be used? Will all 

or any portion of it be used specifically for students studying abroad on EAP 
programs?  Will  it be allocated to campuses in accord with EAP participation 
during the prior year or by some other formula? 
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